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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EHAAEEZRAMGEZERARRE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Rentian Technology CREEEBRERAR(ARARNESS
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) reports the unaudited (B ) EHERAATREMB AR (4K
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and HWIAEEDEBEE_ZE—NLFAZ+HLER
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the six R Z AR EERSESMFBEHREBRLOT -
months ended 30 June 2019 as follows:

Unaudited
RBER
Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEAEAR

2019 2018
—E-1E ZT-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt et TET TR
Revenue & 3 (312,450) 713,607
Cost of sales HEKAK (307,828) (445,725)
Gross (loss) profit E(E)F (620,278) 267,882
Other income Hapl A 4 15,085 17,024
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAE (53,167) (54,746)
General and administrative expenses —RRIIBEX o (186,749) (125,420)
Changes in fair value of financial assets ~ REEmIRZ AT ERE([R BRI
at fair value through profit or loss NHERB 2 HBEEL AT
(“FVPL") EEE) 15 (129,712) (325,215)
Loss from operation REFE (974,821) (220,475)
Finance costs BERA 5(a) (94,859) (92,783)
Impairment of goodwill BERE = (170,000)
Loss before taxation BREAIEE 5 (1,069,680) (483,258)
Taxation I8 6 496 (3,197)
Loss for the period HAEE (1,069,184) (486,455)
Other comprehensive loss: Hig 2 EES
Item ;hat will not be reclassified to profit H T & EF 72 EmleZ EH -
or loss:
Changes in fair value of equity EEREMEERARLFER
instruments designated at fair B([5 \/\ﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁl/\?ﬁ&$
value through other comprehensive BRENRATE R
income (“FVOCI") B2E) (1,045) .
(1,045) —
Items that are or may be reclassified to 2 A HEEH S HEE Bk 2 B
profit or loss: g : ‘ )
Exchange differences arising from REBINEBEEZELESR
translation of foreign operations (763) (19,905)
(763) (19,905)
Other comprehensive loss for the HREMt2EER
period (1,808) (19,905)
Total comprehensive loss for the HAZEREAE
period (1,070,992) (506,360)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FHHAAERREMEERARRE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

Unaudited
RBER
Six months ended 30 June
BEEZAA=THILEAAER

2019 2018
—E-1E T\
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt aE TET FET
(Loss) Profit attributable to: T5IREA (&18) &R
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIET YN (1,039,204) (491,307)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (29,980) 4,852
(1,069,184) (486,455)
Total comprehensive loss attributable T 3B 2EERARE
to:
Owners of the Company AABIEA AN (1,041,096) (505,296)
Non-controlling interests RS (29,896) (1,064)
(1,070,992) (506,360)
HK cents HK cents
74l AL
Basic and diluted loss per share EREARBEES 8 (9.43) (4.41)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& BE AR & Bt AR R &

As at 30 June 2019
RZFE-—NFNA=1H

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
VIS NENN - — A= —H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EF=Z)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB L& 10 71,785 82,029
Intangible assets EEEAE 11 67,429 67,873
Right-of-use assets EREEE 12 31,478 —
Goodwill EES 13 244,092 244,092
Financial assets designated at FEE R H AL 2 E AL
FVOCI NV EREMBEE 14 232,216 233,261
Financial assets at FVPL RIERREAFEREZ
MBEE 15 — 20,285
Pledged bank deposits EERRITIFH 1,700 1,808
Deferred tax assets BEETRIBEE 4,017 3,828
652,717 653,176
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 192,857 201,835
Financial assets at FVPL RIBHIRIZAFEREZ
MBEE 15 240,146 2,262,871
Loan receivables FERE R 16 130,981 149,609
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HAbFEWFIR 17 833,155 709,258
Income tax receivables FEMFTIS 1,744 3,004
Pledged bank deposits BERRITHER 9,793 9,451
Bank balances and cash RTEFE MRS 123,913 335,913
1,532,589 3,671,941
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REAFEN IR 18 446,120 448,524
Lease liability HEAE 12 13,179 =
Income tax payables R FT1S TR 43,729 42,504
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 462,392 1,324,863
Promissory notes A ER 20 398,892 645,975
Convertible bonds AR ES 21 689,348 672,117
2,053,660 3,133,983
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(EE)EEFE (521,071) 537,958
Total assets less current EEHAERRBERE
liabilities 131,646 1,191,134
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5 BE AR & Bt # AR R &

As at 30 June 2019
REZFE-—NENA=1H

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NE
V=S e - — A= —H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFR) (g&EZ)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FTET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease Liability HERE 12 18,546 =
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 41 121
Deferred tax liabilities EREIBAEE 4,237 4,609
Promissory notes A H 20 91,427 90,662
114,251 95,392
NET ASSETS EEFE 17,395 1,095,742
Capital and reserves IR 18
Share capital A% 7R 22 11,022 11,022
Reserves HiE (155,296) 893,300
Equity attributable to owners of RRATHER NEIERAE
the Company (144,274) 904,322
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR 161,669 191,420
TOTAL EQUITY AR E 17,395 1,095,742
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Condensed Consolidated S
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HRESEERERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

Unaudited
RSB

Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tBHLLAER

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Net cash generated from (used in) REXBMB(FARESFHE
operating activities 994,333 (394,723)
Net cash used in investing activities REFHFARESFEHE (6,105) (23,903)
Net cash (used in) generated from METE(FTA) MEESFE
financing activities (1,199,662) 65,934
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRASEEYRHI FHE
equivalents (211,434) (352,692)
Cash and cash equivalents at HUzRERBESEEY
beginning of period 335,913 738,495
Effect on exchange rate changes on cash [EXEHEHUB L KB EEBYM 2
and cash equivalents FE (566) (8,159)
Cash and cash equivalents at end HMEzRERESEEY -
of period, represented by bank USETHEERRERMK
balances and cash 123,913 377,644
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Rentian Technology Holdings Limited was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The functional currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") except for those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Renminbi (“RMB") is
the functional currency.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 34 "Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA").

The preparation of unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements in conformity with HKAS 34 requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses on a year to date basis. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
do not include all the information and disclosures required
in the annual financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. They
have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at FVPL and financial assets designated as at
FVOCI, which are measured at fair value.

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

—REH

CRBEEZERAR A BER 2B S M
KRR EHRRERAT - ERONEE
BAXSMARRR([HRA])ERL

.

M o

AEBEZEEE RBIT(ET]) - 1
EREARKMB(HE DKL HE
REZNEEBR/ARE(TARKE]) -

BHIRARETBR

RARBE XL BRER A WIS RER T iR R B
Rz LW AR LR R B 8%
TAZERBEBERELREEGAMAE
B2 BB G ERNFE 4R HHYH
T |med o

RENEBBGTEAUF MR IARER
EERAGAMBEHRATEEEEFLH
B - fhEt RRER - MAREHE - fhat
BREFESHARRZIERBAARE
E-Af MARRAXFNESZHRK
T - BERARTRERINMEETF -

AREECERGEAMBRRALTE
REREMBHRERABIEZIHTEN K
B EREAEEBE_T—/\Ft+_H
St BLEFEZEBRREAVBER
—HRIE - AREERLGRLEE T H R
REELAAEERE - BRERKRR
RFEREZHBEEREENE LS
BERARATEREZMBEE KRS
BOAFERTE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

2.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Going concern basis

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group
incurred a loss of HK$1,069,184,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2018: HK$486,455,000). As at 30
June 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$521,071,000.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) have given consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow
forecast which covers a period of fifteen months from
the end of the reporting period. The Directors closely
monitor the Group's liquidity position and financial
performance and have initiated measures to improve
the Group’s cash flows. These measures include
obtaining additional financing from certain financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The Group has obtained
letters of undertakings from the controlling shareholder
and certain companies controlled by the controlling
shareholder confirming that they will provide financial
support to the Group to meet its present and future
financial obligations as they fall due in the next fifteen
months.

In the opinion of the Directors, taking into account the
abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the unaudited condensed financial information
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019
on a going concern basis.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {Z kB IZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to write down
the values of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has actively implemented, or is actively
implementing, all the improvement targets outlined
above for the purposes of increasing profits and
improving the cash flow position of the Group, in order
to remove material uncertainties relating to the going
concern of the Group for the next twelve months.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies used in preparing these
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those used in the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018, except for the adoption of the
new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to
the Group’s operation and are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 as described
below.

Annual improvements to 2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRSs

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC) - Interpretation  Uncertainty over Income Tax
23 Treatments

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits

Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

2. EHBARETHEE)

2.1

2.2

FEEE(E)
ﬁ%FW“P“TLE'HTEL
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ﬂ%@ﬁ%*ﬁTmEi%EhA
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ENRBEE ZFHBENTEY
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Rk
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B BRER BB 2SS
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—hF-A— BRI ZARERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

2.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs did not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and amounts reported for the current period
and prior years except for HKFRS 16. The nature and
impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described
below.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. A lessee measures
right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such
as property, plant and equipment) and lease liability similarly
to other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee
recognises depreciation (and, if applicable, impairment loss)
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability.

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements of the superseded HKAS 17 Leases.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The Group has reviewed the impact of HKFRS 16 on all its
contracts that are, or that contain, leases with effect from
1 January 2019. The Group has opted for the modified
retrospective application permitted by HKFRS 16. Accordingly,
HKFRS 16 has been applied for the period from 1 January
2019 to 30 June 2019 only (i.e. the initial application period).
Modified retrospective application requires the recognition
of the cumulative impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 on all
contracts at 1 January 2019 in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

The reconciliation of operating lease commitment to lease

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

2. EHBARETHEE)

BEBRMBREERF 165 - HE(E)
ReMEAZERBEAE 2 HIRETIM

liability is set out below: K

(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
HK$'000
FAT

Operating lease commitments as at RZE-N\FF+ZA=T—RHZLE
31 December 2018 THE#IE 36,158
Lease of short-term and low-value assets RARREEEECHESE (4,492)
Gross lease liability at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—HA—HBZEHEEE 31,666

Discounted operating lease commitments as R -ZE—HFE—H—H -2 85/ %“
at 1 January 2019 THE A (1,644)
Lease liability as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-—HA-—HBZHEEBE 30,022

The adjustments resulted from the initial application of
HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 are set out below. The prior
period amounts were not adjusted.

R-ZE-NF—A-—HEREREEH
BREENF16MAMEL < ARBEIIM
T BEHRNESEAREHAE -

Impact on
At initial At
31 December application 1 January
2018 of HKFRS 16 2019
BRERER
RZB-N\F MBHEER RZB-nF
tZA=t-B  Z16%2¥% —-A-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THEx
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets FREESE — 30,022 30,022
Liabilities &8E
Lease liability HEAGE — 30,022 30,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

2.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

Modified retrospective application of HKFRS 16 requires
the Group to recognise a lease liability at the date of initial
application for leases previously classified as an operating
lease under the superseded HKAS 17 measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date
of initial application. As a practical expedient under HKFRS
16, the Group has not reassessed whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, the
Group applied HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and did not apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17. The Group has applied
a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics for determination of present value of
the remaining lease payments. The right-of-use assets have
been recognised, on a lease-by-lease basis, at respective
carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
the commencement date, but discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate ranging of 6.44% to 8.19% at
the date of initial application.

Based on the practical expedients under HKFRS 16, the
Group has elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of recognition of lease liability and right-of-use
asset to leases for which the lease term ends within twelve
months of the date of initial application.

As at the date of authorisation of these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for
the current period, which the Group has not early adopted.
The Group is in the process of assessing the possible impact
on the future adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs but it
is not yet in a position to reasonably estimate the impact on
the Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision makers (the “CODM") have
evaluated the performance of operating segments and to
allocate resources to those segments based on the Group's
internal reporting in respect of these segments. The Group’s
operating segments are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their businesses.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, there
were four reportable and operating segments as follows:

(@) Integrated smart internet-of-things solutions (“loT
solution™)

(b)  Human-machine interactive devices (“HMID")

(c) Intelligent documentation service (“IDS")

(d) Securities and other investment (“Investing”)

The Group’s other operating segments do not meet any of
the quantitative thresholds for determining as reportable
segments. The information of these other operating segment
is included in the “Unallocated” column.

Segment results represent the results from each reportable
segment without allocation of finance costs. The following
analysis is the measure reported to executive directors, being
the CODM, for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

TRER
IELERRADERAEEEEES
Bz ABERE  TERSHRZRAR
BERAEEES B - AEBZEES
BREBHERRRARER -

REE_ZE—"NEER_Z—LEXA
ZTHIXNER  AEEALTHER

RERKEDR

LB R ARR T3 2 ([ B 48
D

(a) EBAHES
RITER

733
%57

=
H

(b) AMESREERH(AKES])
(0 HeEERRF(EEERRE])
d) BHREMERE(ERE]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 3. 2EERE)
By business segments REBDE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable AEBWGEREEZURED B2
segment is set out below: HomT -

Six months ended 30 June 2019 (Unaudited)
HEZE-NEARAZTALEAER(REER)

loT
solution HMID IDS  Investing Unallocated Total
il BRER
BALR ABEE &% RE KESE by

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TR TR

Revenue g
Sale of products, at a point in time RE-BHHEEER 28,522 275,543 - - - 304,065
Rendering of services, over time FEEr R A RS 34,158 5,200 94,975 — = 134,333
Net realised loss on disposal of LERBRREATE
financial assets at FVPL® REHBEEL
EERERFE' = = - (767383) - (767383)
Interest income from financial assets ~ RERIERATERE
at FvpL LIBEELHE
KA - - - 12,572 - 12,572
Interest income from loan receivables U E 2 F B A - - - - 3,963 3,963
Total revenue @i 62,680 280,743 94,975 (754,811) 3,963 (312,450)
Operating results RexE
Segment results PR (86,238) 19,210 15,929  (886,348) (37,374) (974,821
Finance costs BEMNA (94,859)
Loss before taxation BREAIER (1,069,680)
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

By business segments (Continued)

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

3. ZEERE)
BREBIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2018 (Unaudited)
HE-Z-\EAAZTRLEAER(REER)

loT
solution HMID IDS Investing  Unallocated Total
i BHER
BAAR NEEE R RE REHNE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THER THEx THEx THEx
Revenue K&
Sale of products, at a point in time NE-BHHEEER 168,933 293,741 - - - 462,674
Rendering of services, over time Baks R R AL RS 54,391 3,083 104,368 - = 161,842
Net realised gain on disposal of HENERRIEATE
financial assets at FVPL* RE/HBEEY
EERERFE' = - - 31,751 = 31,751
Dividend income from financial assets ~ REHIERATERE
at FVPL LIBBEIRE
/0N - - - 48,965 - 48,965
Interest income from loan receivables  EY & T2 A 2HA — = - = 8,375 8,375
Total revenue Al 223,324 296,824 104,368 80,716 8,375 713,607
Operating results RexE
Segment results PEEE (164,913) 11,998 16,501 (248,675) (5,386) (390,475)
Finance costs BENK (92,783)
Loss before taxation BB AIER (483,258)
# Represented the proceeds from the sale of investments at fair value # BHERBHRRAFEREZKREZMHM

through profit or loss of HK$1,362,333,000 (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$757,577,000) less relevant costs and carrying value of
the investments sold of HK$2,129,716,000 (six months ended 30 June

2018: HK$725,826,000).

87 1E1,362,333,000 T(HE=-F— N\
FARNA=Z+AHIEAXNMEA 757,577,000
BL)BREBRAREEREZIRAME
2,129,716,000 B T(HE_FT—N\F XA
=+ALNM@A : 725,826,000 T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 3. 2EERE)
By business segments (Continued) REBDE(E)
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable AREBEERBBRUBEDBE 2O
segment is set out below: HolmT -

As at 30 June 2019 (Unaudited)
RZE-RERB=TH(REER)

loT
solution HMID IDS  Investing Unallocated Total
il BREZR
BARTE  ARES fR#% RE  KEIE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Segment assets TREE 676,817 744,734 88,087 473,430 202,238 2,185,306

Segment liabilities AEEE (199,066)  (250,081) (49,668) (1,517,540)  (151,556) (2,167,911)

As at 31 December 2018 (Audited)
R-Z-\F+-A=+-B(EEH)

loT
solution HMID IDS Investing  Unallocated Total
B ByiE \ ‘
BATE  ARE® fR#% 3 AEDE @it

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL T T T

Segment assets PREE 825,820 675,618 96,160 2,517,466 210,053 4,325,117
Segment liabilities PEAE (208,675 (234,528) (54,931)  (2,543,444)  (187,797)  (3,229,375)
4. OTHER INCOME 4. EHA
Unaudited
RICEZX

Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTHILLAER

2019 2018
—E-AF T\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Amortisation of deferred day-one gain  ¥EXE & B U584 (Fi3E 20)

(note 20) 4,981 5,573
Exchange gain, net HINFE I % 5B 1,645 =
Government grants RIS # B 4,320 3,895
Interest income from financial KB B RS HE 2 FI B

institutions 1,241 4,586
Others EHAth 2,898 2,970

15,085 17,024
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is stated after charging (crediting):

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

RV AIE IR
FrEERTES B AR (FFA) T3 & IEES)
g -
Unaudited
RICEX

Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLLAEA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(a) Finance costs (a) RERAX
Interest on convertible bonds ARREHF S (HEE21)

(note 21) 36,074 34,445
Interest on interest-bearing FFEEERE

borrowings 28,616 35,019
Interest on promissory notes AL EEHN B (M7 20)

(note 20) 29,572 23,314
Interest on lease liability HEBERNE 594 —
Finance charges on obligations BEHEEH  RBE

under finance leases &H 3 5
Total borrowing costs BIEERA 94,859 92,783

(b) Other items (b) HfbEHE
Amortisation of intangible assets mpEEEE (M)

(note 11) 3,173 15,863
Loss allowance on trade B 5 W GRIAE B EE

receivables 332 376
Loss allowance on loan FEREREEHEE

receivables 15,860 —
Loss allowance on other HAth fE U GRIE 2 518

receivables =ity 50,393 -
Cost of inventories (Note) FERAME) 224,356 359,707
Depreciation of property, plant WE - BRENMEREBITE

and equipment 14,282 12,480
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE

assets (note 12) (FzE12) 6,743 =
Exchange loss, net M 5 B 18 58 = 5,395
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKKHE

plant and equipment (note 10) < BB 10) 363 10
Minimum lease payments under KREMETHERE

operating leases NEA 4,985 12,970
Research and development costs W7 R B R 7,909 4,881
Staff cost and related expenses 8 TN R AR 109,530 110,615
— includes reversal of share- — PiEBBERES

based payment in respect LARR 19 32 2 538
of share options (839) (12,479)

Note: Cost of inventories included HK$15,233,000 (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$23,281,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and

operating lease charges, which are also included in the respective

total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of

expenses.

Mizr: TERABBEEETIRA  FERKEH
B LM 2152330008 T(BE=F
—N\EXA=+BIERMEA : 23,281,000
7)) BBREENBERESRAIERFALEX
AR5 2 BB SN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

6.

TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax had not been provided as the Group’s
entities either had no assessable profit or their assessable
profits for both periods are wholly absorbed by unrelieved
tax losses brought forward from previous years.

The applicable PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT"”) for the
PRC subsidiaries is at the statutory rate of 25% (six months
ended 30 June 2018: 25%) based on their taxable profit,
unless otherwise specified below.

Seven (six months ended 30 June 2018: seven) PRC
subsidiaries of the Company have been officially designated
by the local tax authority as “High and New Technology
Enterprises”. A reduced tax rate of 15% (six months ended
30 June 2018: 15%) for the period of three years was
granted as long as those PRC subsidiaries meet the high-tech
enterprise qualification.

In 2017, a PRC subsidiary of the Company was qualified as
a software enterprise and granted a tax holiday of two-year
tax exemption followed by three-year 50% tax reduction
(subject to annual review), starting from the first profit
making year from the PRC tax perspective under the effective
tax regulations. This PRC subsidiary made the first-year profit
in 2016. As a result, it is exempted from EIT for 2017, and is
subject to EIT at 12.5% from 2018 to 2020 and at 25% from
2021 onwards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

TAXATION (Continued)

6. HE(E)

Unaudited
RISEX
Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLLAEA

2019 2018
—E-NHF —E-N\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Current tax ZS B i 18

PRC EIT BRSPS

Current period 7N HAfE 3,167 7,609
Over provision in prior period BT B A FR R (3,096) (800)
71 6,809
Deferred tax EERE (567) (3,612)
Tax (income) expenses for the period BAARTE (WA ) X2 (496) 3,197

DIVIDEND

The Directors resolved not to declare any interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$Nil).

7. BRE

EEFRRIHBE_ZT-NEFAA=F
BIEARBASREMTHBRE(BEZ
E-NFRNA=Z+THLEARNER: T

)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

8. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following data:

8. BRES

BREAREEEBEIIERIATBE

s,

Unaudited
REEX
Six months ended 30 June
BEXA=1THLXER

2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
Numerator 7F
Loss attributable to owners of the ARG EERER K EE
Company used in computing basic ~ E1EZARNABHEA A
and diluted loss per share JE(LEs1E (1,039,204) (491,307)
‘000 shares ‘000 shares
TR F iz
Denominator 7 &
Weighted average number of ARG EERER RS
ordinary shares in issue during the  EEZHANDBHITLE
period used in computing basic AR D5 2
and diluted loss per share (a) 11,022,580 11,148,391

Note:

(a) Other dilutive potential ordinary shares were excluded from the
calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion would have been
anti-dilutive or the specific conditions were not met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 9.

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions
during the six months ended 30 June 2019:

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

BEALRS
BRAREEZBRARE M BHRRE M ED
DABRBEZERI  ARERBE-T
—NERA=ZTHLERNEARETZER
BEALRZHWMT -

Unaudited
KRB
Six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTHILLAER

2019 2018
—F-Nn%E —E-NF
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATERE REME THERT FAT
Key management personnel, Salaries and other allowances
including the directors e M E bR 1,674 8,323
FTEEBEAB(BEES) Contributions to defined
contribution plans
REMFKET B 17 47
Total compensation
M sazE 1,691 8,370
Related companies” Operating lease expenses
hcNGI KERERY 1,963 2,157
Purchases
BEaH 1,878 2,909
A The related companies were controlled by the controlling shareholder A ZERE AR A AR E) 2 IR R 1

of the Company
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group's
addition to property, plant and equipment amounting
to HK$4,347,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
HK$13,173,000). The Group disposed of certain property,
plant and equipment with carrying amount of HK$385,000
(six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$147,000) for
proceeds of HK$22,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
HK$137,000), resulting in loss on disposal of HK$363,000
during the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months
ended 30 June 2018: HK$10,000).

Property, plant and equipment with a net book value as at 30
June 2019 of HK$Nil (31 December 2018: HK$12,271,000)
were pledged to secure loans of HK$Nil (31 December 2018:
HK$5,693,000) as set out in note 19(b) to these unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

10. ¥ BERRXE

RBE_ZE-—AFANA=+HIEXRE
A A &£ B A H4,347,0008 T(E
BT )\FXA=ZtHLRAAR:
13,173,000 ) 2 W% - BE K&
H - RBE-_Z-—AE~NAZ+HIE
ANER AEBLEETIERESER
385,000 L(BE-_ZE— NF XA
=+ HIEAEA : 147,00087L) 29
¥ WELRME  PERIER 22,000
BLT(EEZE-NFXA=1+HLE
~EA 137,000 ) EEHEE
363,000 T(HE_ZE—N\FH
=+H1E<MEA : 10,00087T) °

R-ZE-NEXNA=ZTRHIREFEES
ZETL(ZE-NF+ZA=+—8":
12,271,000 70) 2 W% - WE M &H
EEER  EAARKEZERARE
PERERMF190)MFZT AT (ZF
—N\F+ZHA=+—8H : 5,693,000
T ZERZER -



11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

11. BREE

Computer
software Customer Customer Software
copyright contracts  relationships patents Trademark Total
ERE AR EEAH EFB% BHEF (G @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TAR TEL TAR TER
Year ended 31 December HZEZZ—)\5+ZA
2018 (Audited) =t+-HIEFE
(&%)
Carryingamountasat ~ W-E—\E—F—8
1 January 2018 (Audited) 2 IRESHE(LH%) 1,875 1,299 93,114 18,363 40,752 155,403
Additions NE — — — 5,521 — 5,521
Amortisation i (651) (974) (27,934) (2,076) = (31,635)
Impairment WiE (1,224) = (58,195) = = (59,419)
Exchange realignments [ A% — — — (1,090) (907) (1,997)
As at 31 December 2018 W=Z—-N\E+-A
=t+-A — 325 6,985 20,718 39,845 67,873
Cost KA 2,961 2,976 136,677 23,167 39,845 205,626
Accumulated amortisation  ZEH# 54 (1,737) (2,651) (71,497) (2,449) = (78,334)
Accumulated impairment ~ 2:H(E (1,224) = (58,195) = = (59,419)
— 325 6,985 20,718 39,845 67,873
Six months ended BEZ-Z-hEXA
30 June 2019 =tHIEAEA
(Unaudited) (REBER)
Carrying amountasat 1~ R=E—NE—F—8
January 2019 (Audited)  ZIRESE(LER) - 325 6,985 20,718 39,845 67,873
Additions NE — - — 2,786 — 2,786
Amortisation (note 5(b)) %38 (M 5(b) - (325) (1,497) (1,351) = (3,173)
Exchange realignments (B3 35% — = — (42) (15) (57)
As at 30 June 2019 R=B-nE
~A=tH — — 5,488 22,111 39,830 67,429
Cost KA 2,961 2,976 136,677 25,887 39,830 208,331
Accumulated amortisation  Z5HE (1,737) (2,976) (72,994) (3,776) = (81,483)
Accumulated impairment  Z3HE (1,224) — (58,195) — = (59,419)
— — 5,488 22,111 39,830 67,429
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY

Right-of-use assets

12. FRAEEEREESE

FRHEEE
(Unaudited)

(R EZ)
HK$'000
FET
Cost at 1 January 2019 RIZZE-NF-A—BZHEXK
Recognition upon effective of HKFRS 16 REBPHREERE 16 REBEHER 30,022
Additions NE 8,266
Depreciation provided during the period HAMET R ITE (3L 5(b))

(note 5(b)) (6,743)
Exchange realignments M H R (67)
At 30 June 2019 R-F—hF7 +H 31,478
Cost DN 38,132
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (6,654)

31,478

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use underlying leased premises under operating lease
arrangements over the lease terms, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {Z kB IZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY 12. FREEEREEEE(Z)

(Continued)
Lease liability

HEAE

(Unaudited)

(REgEZ)
HK$'000
FAET

Maturity analysis EIHA R AT
Less than one year PR —F 13,179
One to five years —ERF 18,546
Total lease liability at 30 June 2019 R-ZEBE-NFARAA=ZTHZHEAERE 31,725

Analysed as: DR

Current portion TRENER D 13,179
Non-current portion SERENEL 5 18,546
31,725
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

13. GOODWILL 13. &

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

AA=tH +TZHA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Reconciliation of carrying amount IR B = BRIk

At beginning of the reporting period R ¥R&E Hi4] 244,092 1,141,467
Impairment losses BIEEBE — (897,375)
At end of the reporting period REREER 244,092 244,092
Cost &N 1,341,467 1,341,467
Accumulated impairment losses RETRERE (1,097,375) (1,097,375)
244,092 244,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

13. GOODWILL (Continued) 13. BHEB(E)
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the EEREEREOREAEETHA SR
Group's cash generated units identified as follows: SEEBLAT
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZ) (&%)
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHAT
HMID business segment AEBEKSE
Fujian Start Computer Equipment EREEEMREERAAR
Company Limited and its HIE A
subsidiaries 114,786 114,786
loT solution business segment YMBRAMATRELSE
Shenzhen CNEOP Technology RINTTH K EREBR AR
Company Limited (“CNEOP") ([Fye]) 3,792 3,792
Shenzhen Hexicom Technologies RN IBEEHEBRAR]
Company Limited 9,135 9,135
Guangzhou Wealth-Depot Logistics  E/MNAE T ERZEER QA
Technology Company Limited 7,609 7,609
Hangzhou Lepei Telecommunication #INZM:BEHBRE A 7
Company Limited 25,741 25,741
Enterprise Development (“Enterprise EIZEBRBEER AT (TEE]) R
Development”) Holdings Limited HKB AR
and its subsidiaries 71,631 71,631
Beijing Weein Software Technology bt B RIF AR AT
Company Limited 11,398 11,398
244,092 244,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

14.

REMEERARIFEEEREZ
EEVBEE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
AA=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZ) (&EZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Unlisted equity securities in a private RAEBRINFIRIZZFLABR
limited company incorporated RNAElZELETRAFS
outside Hong Kong 232,216 233,261

The balance represents the Group’s equity interests in Co-
Lead Holdings Limited (“Co-Lead”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with limited liability. As at
30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group held 8.58%
equity interests in Co-Lead. The principal activity of Co-Lead
is investment holding.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, a decrease in
fair value of HK$1,045,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
HK$Nil) in Co-Lead was recognised in fair value reserve
(non-recyling). The fair value of Co-Lead was determined by
Access Partner Consultancy & Appraisals Limited (”Access
Partner”), an independent valuer, which was based on the
price-to-net book value (“P/B”) ratios of the comparable
companies and adjusted by minority discounts at end of the
reporting period and is categorised within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

No investment in financial assets designated at FVOCI has
been disposed of during the period. There was no transfer
of any cumulative gain or loss arising from financial assets
designated at FVOCI within equity during the current period.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {Z kB IZRERAT
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REBEEZE-NAFNA=1+THIEARAE
A Co-Lead z A *F {& & 2> 1,045,000
BLEEZE-—N\FNA=ZFTHLER
B : EBT)ERAFEFECTIEN
DHE) R HER o Co-Lead Z A F{EHE B
hEME R R EER AR5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

15. RERRBR AT EREEBZ2HKE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
AA=+H +-HA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
Held for trading BIEEE
Equity securities listed in Hong BB LTRAES
Kong (a) 9,989 1,696,636
Bonds listed outside Hong Kong EBEI ETES (a) = 348,765
Others mandatorily measured at HAb @ bl BRI AT
FVPL HREE
Wealth management products, VEEEER LW
unlisted (b) 63,958 55,565
Unlisted equity securities in REBRINEMA L 2
a private limited company MABRRAFIZIEL
incorporated outside Hong TR FE 5
Kong (c) 78,151 136,212
Unlisted equity securities in REBFMA L ZFLA
a private limited company BRARIZIELTR
incorporated in Hong Kong RFES (d) 31,112 25,693
Unlisted partnership investments FELTEEBEE (e),(f) 56,936 20,285
240,146 2,283,156
Analysed as: DM
Current portion yiElEibe) 240,146 2,262,871
Non-current portion FEmEnEh o — 20,285
240,146 2,283,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The fair value of listed equity securities and listed bonds are based on
quoted market prices in active markets at end of the reporting period.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the fair value loss on listed
equity securities of HK$50,358,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: of
HK$355,031,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the unlisted wealth
management products comprise of unlisted funds and financial
products.

As at 30 June 2019, these unlisted wealth management products
were subscribed from (i) a company registered and approved by
Securities and Futures Commission; and (ii) certain banks in the PRC (31
December 2018: (i) a company registered and approved by Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong; and (ii) a bank in the PRC).
These products were redeemable at the discretion of the Group from
time to time and the intention of holding them was for short-term
investment. Included in these products, HK$37,817,000 (31 December
2018: HK$22,875,000) and HK$26,141,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$32,690,000) were denominated in RMB and United States Dollar
("US$") respectively.

The fair values of these products were reported and provided by the
fund managers and the banks. During the six months ended 30 June
2019, the fair value loss on these products of HK$6,494,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2018: fair value gain of HK$3,118,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {Z kB IZRERAT

15. RERRBR AT EREEBZ2HKE
E(E

faE

(@ LIRABHRZATFEDNERBREHERE
RIS B HE -

REBEZT-NFAA=+HLEAREAR B
BRREERLETRAZAZATFEER
50,358,000 B L(BE-T—N\FR A=
BiE/AMEA : & F{EE518355031,0008

RZT—AFANA=+H ZEXLHHE
BREMIAG) —HEEREEREBZEER
BEESEHBERTZAR ()PEET
RIT(—BE-—NE+-B=+—B:()H—MH
EETREEBZFREECEHGRATZ
AR k() —BHRBERIT)RE - RFER
AHRAEETHEEEE  BEERSEBHR
BHA - ZEEM®B 37,817,000 (=
T—-N\F+ZA=+—8:22875000%
70) % 26,141,000 T(ZE—N\F+=A
=+—H : 32,690,000/ 7T) D BIAA R
EEr(Ex])iHE -

REEMZATEAESEBRIBITRER
Rt REEZZ-AFE A NA=+AHLXNE
B AEBRERIEERZSERIATE
256,494,000 B T(BE-ZE—-N\F XA
=+ ALANEAR : 2 FEUREE3,118,00055
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

The balance represents the Group’s equity interests in Satinu Resources
Group Limited (”Satinu”), a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liabilities. Due to the allotment of new shares to other investors,
the Group’s equity interests in Satinu were diluted from 2.11% to
1.42% at end of the reporting period. The principal activities of Satinu
are provision of integrated financial services, securities brokerage
services, money lending, securities and other direct investments.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the fair value loss of
HK$58,061,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$Nil) in respect of
the investments in Satinu was recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
of the equity interests in Satinu was determined by Access Partner,
which based on the P/B approach and adjusted by minority discounts at
end of the reporting period and is categorised within level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy.

The balance represents the Group’s equity interests in Simagi Finance
Company Limited (“Simagi”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liabilities. Due to the allotment of new shares to other
investors, the Group’s equity interests in Simagi were diluted from
10.10% to 10.07% at end of the reporting period. The principal
activity of Simagi is engaging in money lending business.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the fair value gain of
HK$5,419,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: HKS$Nil) in respect
of the investments in Simagi was recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value of the equity interests in Simagi was determined by Access
Partner, which based on the price-to-earning (“P/E”) approach and
adjusted by minority discounts at end of the reporting period and is
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

BEE

B HAR M A

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

15. RERRBR AT EREEBZ2HKE
E (/“5

feE

(0)

(#)

ZEBREAEAR BN EBRELEST

ik z.2 B A F Satinu Resources Group
Limited ([Satinu|) Z R A ##%5 ° ER Satinu
ME IR E ER IR - A E B R Satinu
ZRAESERBEERBBE2. 1% BEE
1.42% - Satinu 2 T EFB RIBHEQME
R - BALLRYE B8 FFREME
EIRE -

REBE_T-NFAA=+HLANEAR A&
F%EASatmu%xﬁz F {& /&5 18 58,061,000
I%E(ﬁi:’_)\i/\ﬂ +HIERE

THIL)ERIBEIRP R  Satinu ik
ZMEE‘ ZATEATRBEETE - WIRER
REHERBEAMIRE L - WD EE

HRELABRME EEDEAQAFESR
BRR=TE -
ZEBREAEER —BRBEBEMK L2

AR A7) Simagi Finance Company Limited
([Simagil) Z iR A #E % o B 7 Simagi [ &
fth 1% & E BB AR - A& B R Simagi 2
BAERRBERERDA10.10%#EFE
10.07% ° Simagi < F EEEB AN EEEXE

—NFEARA=+RALANEAR B
EﬁﬁAamagﬁxﬁz N E U 5,419,000 7%
T(EHEZZ-N\FAA=THILAHEA :
THIL) ERIBEIRF R © Simagi IR
w2 ATERDRBEET @ LHREBRES
HERBERATRER(MRAX)AE - U5t
LEERTREDARNE - HESBEAR
FEEBRIN=FE -

A

Ik

\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

In March 2017, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
an independent third party and agreed to contribute US$10,000,000
(representing approximately 5.69% of the committed capital of
the partnership at the date of subscription) in a private partnership
incorporated in the Cayman Islands (“Partnership Commitment A”). As
at 31 December 2018, the Group held 4.59% of the committed capital
of the partnership.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group has failed
to make timely payment of the Partnership Commitment A and the
Group's interest of 4.59% in the partnership has been removed. In view
of such incidents, the fair value loss of HK$20,285,000 was recognised
in profit or loss. During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the fair
value loss on the unlisted partnership investments of HK$2,729,000
was recognised in profit of loss.

In May 2019, the Group entered into a partnership agreement with
an independent third party and agreed to contribute RMB99,999,999
(representing approximately 99.99% of the committed capital of
the partnership at the date of subscription) in a private partnership
incorporated in the PRC (“Partnership Commitment B”). During
the period, the Group has contributed RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$56,870,000) and the remaining Partnership
Commitment B will be contributed on or before 19 December 2033.

The fair value of the unlisted partnership was reported and provided by
the manager of the partnership. During the six months ended 30 June
2019, the fair value gain on the unlisted partnership investments of
HK$67,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$Nil) was recognised in
profit or loss.
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15. RERRBR AT EREEBZ2HKE
E(E

faE

(e)

(#)

RZE—+F=A AEEE-—FBUFE=
FEINRBERE TREM—ERASH
Sz A& % H & 10,000,000%
T(HERZEERABABRZERFZEARN
#)5.69%)([&BEHKAD - RZT—N\F
TZAE+—H AEEREZREBIER
HER459% °

RBEE-_T—AFXA=Z+BLEAEAR"
REBMBERBEINEBERA MAE
B2 EDISO%CERR - ERZEE
420,285,000 T A FEBEENAE
HPER - REE_E—NESA=+H
IEARMEA FETERBREZATEER
2,729,000 & T ERIEEFIER ©

RZZT—NEFRA  AEEHE-EBIE=
FENEBHE TRER—HERRE
M2 AERBEEARKI9,999,999
T(HERZRABRZABZEFREELRD
99.99%) ([ & BHE#BL) - NEIMA » K&
BB & A R#50,000,0007T (18 & R4
56,870,000 7T) * MR T~ & BHEFEBKR
ZZE==F+ZA+tNBRZAHE -

KENABZATFECHAEZEEBEERN
Rt - RBEEZZT-—AFA=+HLEAE
AR REMAEBKREZATFERZ 67,000
BLTEBE-T—N\FEFXA=THLEXE
A TET)BRIBESETER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES 16.

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to
repayment schedules. The balance comprises loan receivables

FE IR & 5%
BRAEE 2 ERARBE R HRME
B - BRESBBERN TS B2 EK

from: B
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
~NA=+tH +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e FExT FAT
Loan receivables eI E R (a) 191,508 194,276
Less: Loss allowance B BEER (b) (60,527) (44,667)
130,981 149,609
Notes: MisE

(a) At end of the reporting period, (1) loan receivables of HK$82,533,000
were unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate of 15% per annum (31
December 2018: HK$129,298,000 were unsecured, carried at fixed
interest rate of ranging from 15% to 18% per annum) and within
the respective maturity dates; and (2) remaining loan receivables
of HK$108,975,000 were unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate
of ranging from 8% to 18% per annum (31 December 2018:
HK$64,978,000 were unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate of
ranging from 5% to 15% per annum) and overdue.

(b) During the six months ended 30 June 2019, a loss allowance on loan
receivables of HK$15,860,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$Nil)
was recognised in profit or loss.

MEREHR » (1) 82,533,000 7T 2 fE W &
REBERF  RETFANERISET (=
T-NF+=ZA=+—H":129,298,000
BIL)Z EWRE R AEERRIZE T FF
ENFISEZISEFERTESL: &
(2) 108,975,000 T2 TEIKE R AE
A RETFNRSEZ18EE(ZF
—N\EFE+ZA=+—H 64,978,000/ T
AEER  RETFEMENFTSER 15E:
BIRWBME o

REBEE-T—AF A=+HILXEA &
WE R 2 5181 15,860,000 B (B E—
Z—N\FARAA=ZTHLEAEAR: TERTIE
RIBEIRPHER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EZREMEWFIE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—B-h#E e
~NA=+H +-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZ) (BE%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M FExT FHIT
Trade receivables B2 RWHIE
Trade receivables 5 W FIE 478,854 452,323
Less: Loss allowance B BEER (c) (134,679) (134,483)
(a) 344,175 317,840
Bills receivables EWERE 4,584 2,337
Other receivables H fih pE R FRIE
Prepayments to suppliers A FE P TR 2 5B (b) 270,299 225,419
Prepayments TETFRIE 2,338 4,030
Deposits and other debtors, net of 2% K H b fE U b 54
loss allowance (PR ESEREAE) (0) 211,759 159,632
484,396 389,081
833,155 709,258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance, based

17.

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

B RHMBEWRRIERE

BT -

(@) EBZRUFAHBREBEFRL)REZAHZ

on the invoice date, is as follows: IREDITAT :
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE ar ST
~AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (8 EZ)
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within 90 days 90 KA 203,503 212,906
91-180 days 91E 180K 30,342 9,858
181-365 days 181 E 365K 51,988 25,534
Over 365 days 365 KA E 58,342 69,542
344,175 317,840

The Group allows a credit period of 30-90 days (31 December 2018:
30-90 days) to its customers.

These prepayments to suppliers are unsecured, interest free and will be
used to offset against future purchases from suppliers.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, a loss allowance on trade
receivables and other receivables of HK$332,000 (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$376,000) and HK$50,393,000 (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$Nil) were recognised in profit or loss respectively.

REBERTHEEFPI0EZEOR(ZE-NF
TZA=+—H :30890K)ZizEH -

(b) HERENHEHIKEAREER RS
AREERKAREHBE 2SR -

(© MREEZT-NAFAA=+AL EA &
5 K H A B W R 1B 2 18 51K 5 511 332,000
ATEHE-ZF-N\FEFXA=ZTHLEAE
H :376,000#%7T) & 50,393,000 B (=
ZE-N\FRA=ZTHLERER - TFT)
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
B2 —F—NFNA=FHIFAEA

18. EZ RHEMENRE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

~A=+tH +=-A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZX) (BE%)

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

M FET FET

Trade payables B S5 EMARIE (a) 220,391 215,548

Bills payables EAEE 28,621 25,824
Other payables H i e+ 7RI

Accrued charges FEETE A 60,644 87,582

Interest payables FERTRE 35,696 31,364

Other creditors H At FET IR K (b) 51,063 51,635

Trade deposits received BWE Fine 49,705 36,571

197,108 207,152

446,120 448,524
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 18. EZRHEMENRIEE)
Notes: Bsr -
(@)  The credit period of trade payables is normally within 90 days (31 (a) BOENREZEEH —HKAIOKRZE

—N\F+ZA=+—H:90K)N- EHE
NRBRBEZAZIREDITIT ¢

December 2018: 90 days). The ageing analysis of trade payables, based
on the invoice date, is as follows:

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

~AA=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEK) (&%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within 90 days 90 KA 163,562 169,219
91-180 days 91 & 180K 20,054 5,648
181-365 days 181 £365K 5,132 13,064
Over 365 days 365 KA E 31,643 27,617
220,391 215,548

The balance included amounts due to a selling shareholder of CNEOP
(the “Selling Shareholder”) of HK$33,360,000 (31 December 2018:

HK$33,360,000).

(b) ZEHBEENTAEERBRR(EBRR
3#1)33,360,000 T(ZE—-N\F+_A

=+—H : 33,360,000 T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19. ;TEREE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
VIS e - — S =-—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
F 5T TET FHET

Bank borrowings, unsecured and RITIEE - BEARBEER
guaranteed (a) 9,838 28,405
IRITERE » BT REER

Bank borrowings, secured and

unguaranteed (b) 9,099 14,801
Bank borrowings, secured and IRITEE - BEFRRBER
guaranteed (c) 180,000 200,000
Bank borrowings, unsecured and RITEE - BERAREER
unguaranteed (d) 2,275 —
Margin loans, secured and HRED  BIEHLEER
unguaranteed (e) — 685,499
Loans from a third party, unsecured RKE—HE=FZ2EK
and unguaranteed AR R B ER () 5,000 5,000
Loans from financial institutions, RE—HHBHECE
secured and guaranteed ;o BERAERBER (9) 250,000 391,000
Loans from a financial institution, REMBHEEZER
unsecured and unguaranteed AR EE R (h) 6,020 —
Obligations under finance leases BEHEES 201 279
462,433 1,324,984
Analysed as: DR
Current portion mENE D 462,392 1,324,863
Non-current portion MBS 41 121
462,433 1,324,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Bank borrowings, unsecured and guaranteed

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB (31 December 2018:
RMB) and carried interest (i) at the prevailing interest rate of loan
prime rate plus 178 basis points; or (ii) at prevailing interest rate of
loan prime rate plus 0.55% per annum (31 December 2018: (i) at the
prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate plus 178 basis points; (ii) at
prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate plus 0.55%; or (iii) at fixed
rate of ranging of 5.655% to 8% per annum). At end of the reporting
period, the bank borrowings of HK$4,151,000 were guaranteed by
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary; and the remaining bank
borrowings of HK$5,687,000 were guaranteed by a subsidiary (31
December 2018: (i) bank borrowings of HK$5,180,000 were guaranteed
by non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary; (ii) bank borrowings
of HK$5,009,000 were guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary, non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and a third party; (iii) bank
borrowings of HK$6,831,000 were guaranteed by a subsidiary; and (iv)
bank borrowings of HK$11,385,000 were guaranteed by the controlling
shareholder of the Company and a third party). The bank borrowings

are wholly repayable within one year.

Bank borrowings, secured and unguaranteed

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB (31 December 2018:
RMB) and carried interest at the loan prime rate plus 0.475% per
annum (31 December 2018: (i) at the loan prime rate plus 0.475%; or
(i) at fixed rate of 5.655% per annum). At end of the reporting period,
the bank borrowings was secured by certain trade receivables (31
December 2018: (i) bank borrowings of HK$5,693,000 were secured by
the Group’s property, plant and equipment; and (ii) bank borrowings
of HK$9,108,000 were secured by certain trade receivables). The bank
borrowings are wholly repayable within one year.

BEE

19.

(b)

B HAR M A

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

ARER(E)

BEE -

MITEE  BEFAREFER
ZERTEEUARB( ZZE—NE+=A
=+—H: AR¥FE  RORTHER
BERMEM178 EES : k(i) ROTKERE
A EMEFNROSSE(ZT—N\F+=A
=+—B:(O)BRITREEERFFNEM178
[EE=% (ll)ﬁﬁrﬁ%iém%@&%ﬁ?
s (i) B E R LN FFF5,655FF8E )5t
B RIREHRIR - IRITEE 4,151,000 T

A—EMRB AR Z IEERRRER : KRBT
#R171&E 5,687,000 LA — KT B A A&
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8: ()R{TE
%fSJSO,OOO?éTEEH*FEWﬁ%Aﬂﬂ'\]?Hﬁ
AR AR ¢ (i) $RIT1EE 5,009,000 & ;LB —
BB AR ZES - —RINEB AR IEER
% B & 58 = J5 &R ¢ (iii) 847155 6,831,000
BT —EWE R RER &(w)iﬁ%ﬂﬂ%
11,385,000 BT AARA R Z IR RAR R R 5B
FHER) ZERITHREAR— EW*"%( &
i%o

BITHEHE > FEARERER
ZERITEBEEUARB(ZZ—N\E+=A
=+—8: AR¥)E  REESERF
ME0475B(ZE—NF+=-A=1+—8:
(VRBEERFFEMN0.475F ¢ (i) EE
FFIEK5.655F)FT 8 o RIBEHK - RITHE
EhETEZBREGRBEEER(ZZ-N\F
+=—A=+—8 :()5693,000& T 2 1T
BEUARSE @2%% R RS EE A
K (i) $B1TIE B 9,108,000 8 LA T8 5 &
WHIBEER) - ZERITEEER—FR
BHEE -
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HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

19. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Bank borrowings, secured and guaranteed

The bank borrowings carried interest at The Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 5.6% per annum (31 December 2018:
HIBOR plus 4.6% per annum). The bank borrowings were secured by
the charges over the entire issued share capital in certain subsidiaries
of the Company, guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
Company (31 December 2018: the same). The bank borrowings are

wholly repayable within one year.

Bank borrowings, unsecured and unguaranteed

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB and carried interest at
the prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate plus 15% of loan prime
rate per annum. The bank borrowings are wholly repayable within one

year.

Margin loans, secured and unguaranteed

The margin loans have been fully settled during the period.

Loans from a third party, unsecured and unguaranteed

The loans due to an independent third party is unsecured, carried
interest rate of 9% per annum (31 December 2018: the same) and is

repayable within one year.

Loans from financial institutions, secured and guaranteed

The loans due to financial institutions of HK$250,000,000 is secured
by 203,854,292 share of Enterprise Development, guaranteed by the
controlling shareholder of the Company and carried interest rate at
The Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited ("BOCHK")'s HK$ prime rate
plus 2% per annum. The loan is due in July 2019 pursuant to the loan
agreement (31 December 2018: the same).

Loans from a financial institution, unsecured and unguaranteed

The loans carried interest at a fixed rate of 11.125% per annum and

are repayable on demand.
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19.

AREEGE

BT -

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(%)

RITEE  FEARFER

ZERTEERBEBRITAERLNEE
RITEAEREDMENES6EFE(ZF
—NF+ZA=+—8 : BERTAERFRE
MEMKL46E) ° ZERITEBEARRTE
THBRRZME HITRAZ MR EEM -
BARREBRERER(ZZE-N\E+A
=t+—8:ER)  ZFRITEEER—F

RITEE > BEFAREBRER
ZERTEENARKE - RRTRES
ERFEMEEF15%ETE - ZFRITEE
AR —FNEBBIEE -

NS

FREX  FEARERR

ZEFREZNBATEEH -

RE—EE=HZEN - MERREER
BEBABIE=H L RRARER B4
HEOE(-E-NF+-A=+-8:1
&8 - WAR—FREE -

REMBEBZERN  FERREER

ZEREN — B B S 2 §5£250,000,000
VS TCLA 203,854,292 FR R AR D 1B IR - |
RARZERBRREER - RPBERIT(EH)
BRAR(THBERIT(EB)ERAR DB
SEBENRM2EHS - REEXHZ
ZEEFR-_T-NAELARNHC=ZZ—N
F+ZA=+—8:HER) -

RE-—HMPBEEECER  BEARERER

RERREERFAE 11254 BLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

20. PROMISSORY NOTES 20. AREE
Debt Deferred
component day-one gain Total
BB ELE B W& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2018 (Audited) RZZE—-N\F—H—H
(&%) 715,338 24,486 739,824
Fair value of promissory notes BBITREEER S
issued at the inception date HEz A FE 219,909 = 219,909
Interest charged for the year FRFELH 53,067 - 53,067
Interest payables on promissory FHAE R RRIE 2 A
notes included in other payables 3 Z#EEM TS (39,093) — (39,093)
Amortisation of deferred day-one  JEFE & B U251 54
gain — (11,070) (11,070)
Settlement “HE (226,000) = (226,000)
At 31 December 2018 and at RZE—N\F+=A
1 January 2019 (Audited) =t+—-BRZZE-H
F-A—H(BER) 723,221 13,416 736,637
Interest charged for the period HRFI BT
(note 5(a)) (P 5 5(a)) 29,572 — 29,572
Interest payable on promissory P AE M 5 BB 2
notes included in other payables X EIEEF S (20,909) = (20,909)
Amortisation of deferred day-one  JEFE & B Ut 54
gain (note 4) (HzE4) — (4,981) (4,981)
Settlement ®E (250,000) — (250,000)
At 30 June 2019 (Unaudited) R=ZB-hEXRA=1+
A (REEZ) 481,884 8,435 490,319
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

20. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

20. AHREE(E)

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE AN S
ANA=tH +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&EZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Analysed as: DA
Current portion mENE S 398,892 645,975
Non-current portion JEREN I D 91,427 90,662
490,319 736,637

Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes F, Promissory
Notes G, Promissory Notes H and Promissory Notes |

In prior years, the Group issued several promissory notes
("Promissory Notes A", “Promissory Notes F”, “Promissory
Notes G”, “Promissory Notes H” and “Promissory Notes
") of HK$80,000,000, HK$8,000,000, HK$1,500,000,
HK$5,000,000 and HK$450,000,000, at 5% interest rate
per annum with 7 years of maturity, at 6% interest rate
per annum with 4 years of maturity, at 6% interest rate
per annum with 5 years of maturity, at 6% interest rate
per annum with 7 years of maturity and at 6% interest rate
per annum with 2 years of maturity from the date of issue
respectively, to several independent third parties.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {Z kB IZRERAT

AAEEBA REREEF ARAEEG
AAEBHREALEEI
RBEFE XEBEITDH
80,000,000/ 7T * 8,000,000/% JT -
1,500,0007% 7T * 5,000,000% 7T &
450,000,000 % 7T 2 % 10 & H E 58, ([ %
HEBAITHAREREF] - [HAEER
Gl [REEBBHIRIARLERI]) T
BEE=T  EABRBARFERNES
[E39T  REABITHHRBH R EERD
H AREBRFRFEMNER6EET R
BRETAHREmEFRDE  ARLE
BGRFEMECEEIT R"BAETHE
BEDRAFRIE - AHLEBHIREF
KREEEIT RBETABERESF
RIEEH MALEBIRFEMNER6EZE
17 REBEITA HERT MM SE R 2 HY -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes F, Promissory
Notes G, Promissory Notes H and Promissory Notes |
(Continued)

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, interest expenses
on Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes F, Promissory
Notes G, Promissory Notes H and Promissory Notes | of
HK$5,252,000, HK$238,000, HK$45,000, HK$149,000
and HK$14,687,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
HK$5,422,000, HK$316,000, HK$45,000, HK$149,000,
and HK$16,238,000); and amortisation of deferred day-
one gain on Promissory Notes A and Promissory Notes | of
HK$2,504,000 and HK$2,477,000 (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$2,504,000 and HK$2,903,000) were recognised in
profit or loss respectively.

Part of the Promissory Notes | of HK$250,000,000 matured
and was fully settled during the period.

Promissory Notes C

In January 2016, the Group issued promissory notes of
HK$200,000,000 in aggregate at 4% interest rate per annum
with 2 years of maturity from the date of issue to a financial
institution in Hong Kong (“Promissory Notes C"). Promissory
Notes C is guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
Company and secured by the charges over the entire issued
share capital in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, no interest
expenses on Promissory Notes C (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$1,144,000); and no amortisation of deferred
day-one gain on Promissory Notes C (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$166,000) were recognised in profit or loss
respectively as the Promissory C were fully settled in 2018.

20.

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

EARE(E)
BEREA  ARREF RARAG
FAREHRELER ()

REBEE-ZZE-—NFAA=THLEAE
R AR EBA AHLEEF AHE
BG AHEBHREALZRIZFE
f9 % % 75,252,000/ JT * 238,000
75 JT ~ 45,0007 JT - 149,000 T &
14,687,000 (B == — \F <
A=+H1E/M@l A :5,422,0008 T *
316,000 7T * 45,0007 7T+ 149,000
77T 5% 16,238,000/ 70) + A MEH =
BARELER ZIEEE BREEED
712,504,000 7T % 2,477,000 7t (&
E-E-NEXNAZ+TBHIEANEA:
2,504,0007% 7T % 2,903,000 7T ) B A
BRIRER -

250,000,000 8 70 2 & & EFE IE R HA
BIHAY BB AEHE -

AREEC

RZE—RNF—A AEBERFHNX
48 3174 ££200,000,000 % JT 2 & H
ER(ERRLEBRCHTEAE R B
B RBETASRTAMEREIE -
AR BECHARB ZERREER -
WARARBETHBATZBE TR
A2 PR IEE IR -

REBEE-E—AFEAAA=1+HLA~E
A WEAHEZERECZHERI(E
EZFE-N\FXNAZTHILEAREA:
1,144,000/8 70 ) R EE K BIEC 2 ik
EERKE#EBZE_T—N\FXA
=+HIEEA 166,000 L) ERIE
HIRTER AR EARZERCER S
- N\FEHLEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

20. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

Promissory Notes J and Promissory Notes K

In connection with the acquisition of financial assets at
FVPL in August 2018, the Group issued two promissory
notes (“Promissory Notes J” and “Promissory Notes K”) of
HK$175,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 to Satinu and Simagi
respectively as subscription consideration. Promissory Notes
J and Promissory Notes K were both issued at 6.5% interest
rate per annum with 1 year of maturity from the date of
issue.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, interest
expenses on Promissory Notes J and Promissory Notes K of
HK$6,920,000 and HK$2,281,000 (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$Nil and HKS$Nil) were recognised in profit or loss
respectively.
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20. AHREE(E)

AREBIRETEEK

AR NFN\AKNEEEBRIRE
AP ERBZHMBEE  KEESHHM
Satinu & Simagi % 17 175,000,000 /& JT
K.50,000,000 & 7T 2 M5 3 5 2= 4% ([ 7%
HERIRIALEEK]D)  EARER
B RABEIRARERIRFHNE
6.5F T RNBEITAHRT —FRE
/Hﬂ o

RBEZZ—NFAA=ZF+HILEAHEA
A ARRRIREALEBRK ZF SR
7 Bl 6,920,000 JT }2,281,000/%
T(EHEZZE—NENA=ZTHLAE
B EBLRTEIL)ERERTER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The movement of liability component at amortised costs of

the convertible bonds is as follows:

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

AR E 5
TRRES RRERAZ BEDH B
m -

2016
Convertible
Bonds
—E—RF
ARRES
(Note a)
GET)
HK$'000
FET
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-N\FF+ZA=+—HK

(Audited) —E-NF-A-B(RERZ) 672,117
Interest charged for the period (note 5(a)) FRFEXZ I (EE5()) 36,074

Interest payable on convertible bonds included &t AE fth fE {3/ IE & AT AR E 5 FE TS
in other payables (17,112)
Exchange realignments P o, 8 (1,731)
17,231
At 30 June 2019 (Unaudited) RZE—NFARA=Z+HCREEZ) 689,348

Notes:

On 9 September 2016, the Company, as issuer, entered into a placing
agreement with a lead manager, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to issue, and the lead manager conditionally
agreed to procure (a) the first round investors to subscribe for the
initial convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$80,000,000 (the
“2016 Convertible Bonds 1”); and (b) the second round investors to
subscribe for, the additional convertible bonds in the principal amount
of US$30,000,000 (the “2016 Convertible Bonds I1”), at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.586 per share (collectively referred to the
“2016 Convertible Bonds"”) based on the agreed exchange rate of US$1
= HK$7.755.

(@ RZIF—AR"EAANA AARIERET
AVBEEBFERAT I —HESHE - &
bt RARBIEEREEIT  mEELH
AUEBRHEREREQEHREERES
BRI AR (5 % + A & % /480,000,000 % JT
([ZZE—RETRREHD: ROE=
BREERBEIINTRRES  A2EA
30,000,000 T([Z T — AN FAI AR EFH
1) - MPEHRERSRSSHE TR
[ZZ—REARRES]) LB EEER1
FEILH 7.755BTCAE -

INTERIM REPORT 2019 iR

49



50

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 23 September 2016, the Company issued 2016 Convertible
Bonds | of US$80,000,000 to two investors which is convertible into
1,058,703,070 conversion shares at maximum. The 2016 Convertible
Bonds | are secured, interest-bearing at 5.5% per annum and have a
term of 3 years.

In August 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 51% equity
interests in CNEOP. As part and parcel of the acquisitions, the Group
and Selling Shareholder entered into a profit guarantee agreement,
pursuant to which the Company shall issue and allot the convertible
bonds in the principal amounts up to the value of HK$29,060,000 and
pay up to HK$8,290,000 in cash to the Selling Shareholder subject to
the satisfaction of the profit indicator.

In May 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$14,000,000 (the “2017 Convertible Bonds”) to the
Selling Shareholder upon the satisfaction of the profit indicator for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016. The 2017 Convertible
Bonds of HK$14,000,000 have matured in 2018 and were included in
the “Trade and other payables” as at 30 June 2019 and 31 December
2018.

Due to the satisfaction of the profit indicator for the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group is obligated to issue convertible bonds in
principal amount of HK$15,060,000 and pay cash of HK$4,300,000 to
the Selling Shareholder. However, no convertible bond or cash has been
issued or paid to the Selling Shareholder and the aggregate amount
payable to the Selling Shareholder of HK$19,360,000 was included in
the “Trade and other payables” as at 30 June 2019 and 31 December
2018.
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21. AIBERES(E

BT - (48)

(a)

(%)

R-ZE—XRNFALAZ+T=8 " ARAAMB
1% & % %1780,000,000 L2 Z T — A F
ARRES | (&% AT ER51,058,703,070
RE/WD) - —T—ANFARREHF AR
B REFRSSERERFHA=F -

RZZE—RFNA  AEETRUWEPLE
51% B4R - (EAKRE2 —H5 - A%E
EhRZERBRE(TERRR DI 1%
wmARE R - B EEREFIEERZE
BT ARAGAERBRRBETREERS
5B E{E & 29,060,000% 7T 2 7] iR (& %
R 5% 8,290,000 BLHE ©

EEREBEE-_T—AFE=_T—~F+=A
=E+—BLEFEZHNERE  RZT—+
FRA ARAIMERBREETASER
14,000,000 T2 AIRRES ([ ZT—+F
AJREIES ) » 14,000,000 T2 —F—+
FARBRESFER 2T — TR A=
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=E+—BRZIESREMEMARE] -

HREBE-Z—tF+-A=+—RHL#F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

SHARE CAPTIAL 22. B
30 June 2019 (Unaudited) 31 December 2018 (Audited)
—E-nEXA=t+H - N\F+TZA=1—H
(RBER) (&%)
No. of shares No. of shares
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
R EE 1 2 B
T THET Tk FAT
Authorised: EE
At beginning of period/year  FAHA, ) K 7> BR
and at end of the period/ JERR
year
Ordinary shares of HHREE 0.001
HK$0.001 each Bz Ei@ik  5,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRHE:
At beginning of period/ RELFH)
year
Ordinary shares of HiREE0.001
HK$0.001 each BT BB 11,022,580 11,022 11,148,390 11,148
Shares repurchased Sl — — (125,810) (126)
At end of the period/year ~ WHR, /4
Ordinary shares of EiREE0.001
HK$0.001 each BT BB 11,022,580 11,022 11,022,580 11,022

During the period, pursuant to the general mandate given to
the Directors, the Company repurchased a total of 270,000
of its shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration
of HK$6,000, in which no shares were cancelled and
recognised as treasury shares as at 30 June 2019. The
total consideration paid to repurchase these shares were
HK$6,000, which has been deducted from equity attributable

to the owners of the Company.

RABRER BEERTESEZ —BE
T AR RIRBAE6,0007 7T R BE R
Fr& L8801 270,000 B f% 15 - R =
E-NEXRNA=ZTHITERGEFEHEK
WRAETFTRGD - HEBOZERMD 28
RER6,0008TT  ZHBECHAKRAF
A AR RRER IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HAGES M BRRME

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

23.

24,

MARGIN FACILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, margin facilities of HK$150,000,000
(31 December 2018: HK$841,733,000) from certain
regulated securities dealers were granted to the Group
under which financials assets at FVPL of HK$9,989,000
and 39,210,000 shares of Enterprise Development held by
the Group (31 December 2018: financials assets at FVPL of
HK$1,556,315,000 and 39,682,000 shares of Enterprise
Development) were treated as collateral for the facilities
granted. The Group did not utilise of these facilities as at 30
June 2019 (31 December 2018: HK$685,499,000).

DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL

Disposal of 0.09% equity interests in Enterprise
Development

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 42.99% equity
interests in Enterprise Development. During the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired additional
16,802,000 shares of Enterprise Development, representing
3.19% equity interests in Enterprise Development, on
the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,361,000 and the Group’s equity interests in Enterprise
Development increased to 46.18%.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group
disposed 17,274,000 shares of Enterprise Development,
representing 3.28% equity interests in Enterprise
Development, on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
proceed of HK$6,851,000.
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23.

24,
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R-ZE-AEXA=Z+B BEFTZH
EEFRLEANAIEERLETRAE
150,000,000 jo(=Z E — )\ F + =
A =+ — B 841,733,000 7t ) -
Bt REXRREAFERE 20K
& FE 9,989,000 7T 539,210,000 f%
HASERFANEEROM ZZE—AN
F+-_A=Z+—H: REBRREQIF
BE®E 2% & E556,315000%
7T %.39,682,000 f% 1 B A% 19 ) 18 B
ERpEsEBRRER - RZZT—AN
FRA=ZTH XEBYEDAZS
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HENBARZER(EEL X
2 | 8
HEME0.09% BRAFERS

RZE—-N\F+ZRA=+—H X&H
BELEA 9% B AER - BHE-ZT
—NFEXRXAZ+HLEAREA  AEER
Bk 3Z BT AR B 48 85 13,361,000/8 JT 1%
% 16,802,000 R RAR 1D - HHERTR
3.19% B AKEZ  MASEEREEZK
RIETIZINE46.18% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BEE

Six mo

BEr—F

ot 5 % 2% MY &

nths ended 30 June 2019

—NFNA=FHIEMEA

24, HEMBLARA 2 HEB(LERE

WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL (Continued) EEIRE) (&)

Disposal of 0.09% equity interests in Enterprise HERTRE0.09% BRAER (&)
Development (Continued)

Upon completion of the above transactions, the Group held TR PR 5E REBR_F—N

42.90% equity interests in Enterprise Development as at

30 June 2019, resulting in an increase in non-controlling FER o B{EIEE

interests of HK$145,000 and an decrease in equity

attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$6,655,000. 6,655,000 T °

E—\ﬁ +B#H AT REL2.90% KK

% # #= 12 A0 145,000

BIL R AR B A A EAE#E =R D

(Unaudited)

(REEEZ)

HK$'000

FAET

Net proceed paid in cash AR & X 2 RS IEF 58 (6,510)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without HEMBARZRE(LEmAEEHE)

loss of control (145)

Difference recognised in other reserve H @R ERL AT AR E58
included in equity (6,655)
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RS-k &k

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
on recurring basis at 30 June 2019 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

J Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical financial assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: input other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly;

o Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the assets
or liabilities.
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Notes to nsolidated Flnanual State

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—FE—NFENA=FHIANEA

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. BB IRAZAVEGE)

(Continued)

a) Recurring fair value measurement a)

REMEAVETE

Assets measured at BAVENEZ
fair value BE
Financial assets at REMZERAR
Fvocl DNVEREZH
BEE
— Unlisted equity — REBIRINGE
securities in a A AL 2 AL
private limited ABRAR
company ZIE LTl
incorporated KEH
outside Hong
Kong
Financial assets at RERIRRDTE
FVPL BEZHBEE
— Listed equity — ETRAES
securities
— Wealth — UEEEE
management o LT
products,
unlisted
— Unlisted equity — REBEBREIGE
securities in a AL 2 AL
private limited ABRAT
company ZIE LR
incorporated RS
outside Hong
Kong
— Unlisted equity — REBEMAK
securities in a SMZFWAE
private limited RARZIE
company LA
incorporated in %
Hong Kong
— Unlisted — FLEMEER
partnership )
investments
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Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

a) Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

31 December

MBTAZAFEGE)

a) REMQATVEEGE)

2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—Z-N\F
+-A=+-H HAI— &A= &A=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEx THIL T
(Audited)
(&%)
Assets measured at fair AV EFERZ
value &E
Financial assets at FVOCI  REM2ERAZ LT
BREHBEE
— Unlisted equity — REBRNEM
securities in a M2 TLAE
private limited BRARZIEL
company TR 5
incorporated
outside Hong Kong 233,261 — — 233,261
Financial assets at FVPL ~ REZIRZAFEEE
ZHBEE
— Listed equity — FRAES
securities 1,696,636 1,696,636 — —
— Listed bonds — tfE%s 348,765 348,765 - —
— Wealth management — MEEEEM:
products, unlisted L 55,565 — — 55,565
— Unlisted equity — REBEINER
securities in a K ZFAB
private limited RARZIEL
company MRAE %
incorporated
outside Hong Kong 136,212 — — 136,212
— Unlisted equity — REBEMK L
securities in a ZIABRA
private limited Al Z 3k Lk
company FH
incorporated in
Hong Kong 25,693 = = 25,693
— Unlisted partnership — FEMARKE
investments 20,285 — — 20,285
2,516,417 2,045,401 — 471,016
During the six months ended 30 June 2019 and the REZ-_ZT-—NFA=T+THILEAREA

RBE-2-N\FT=A=t-AL%F
B R ATFERHERS R =
ZEETEE  AFEHERT=IE
AR -

year ended 31 December 2018, there was no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRS B RRME

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

a)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

Six months period ended 30 June 2019

Financial assets  Financial assets
at Fvocl - at FVPL-
Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity
securitiesina  securities in a

private limited ~ private limited

company company

incorporated  incorporated

outside Hong  outside Hong

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

25. BT ECZAFEE)

Financial assets
at FVPL -
Unlisted equity
securities in a
private limited
company
incorporated in

RFEGTERE=2E
BE-ZS—hhEARNA=1+HLANHE
AR

Financial

Financial  assets at FVPL
assets at FVPL - Wealth
-Unlisted ~ management
partnership products,

Kong Kong Hong Kong investments unlisted Total
REER EHR
BARATE  RATERE  ROVERE
REZHE ZHBEE-R 2HBEE- R NEHR
EE - RER BREN BRI HEEE  RATERE
3 AT | i RIZBA  BATERE 2HHEE-§
BAERARZ BARRAAz  BRAEZ  ZHEBEE- EEE
Description i Frofads  ELnRAEZ  ELARARS EL0GBRE  ER ELR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn Thn 1Az Thn Thn
Asat 1 January 2019 (Audited) R ZF-NE-F-A
(&5H) 233,261 136,212 25,693 20,285 55,565 471,016
Iniial recognition R - - - 56,870 37817 94,687
Disposal during the period Bnpe = - - - (22,853) (22,853)
Fair value changes LEEEY (1,045) (58,061) 5,419 (20,218) (6,494) (80,399)
Exchange realignments ERgE - - - (1) m (18)
At as 30 June 2019 (Unaudited) RZE-AEAB=TH
(REFH) 232,216 78,151 31,112 56,936 63,958 462373
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Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. BB IAZAFEGE)

(Continued)

a) Recurring fair value measurement (Continued) a) KBEUAFEEE)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements RFEAEBRE =25 (&)
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 Hz—_=2—/\F+-_A=+—H1L
R
Financial Financial
assets at assets Financial
FOCI- atFvpL- assets
Unlisted Unlisted at FVPL-
equity equity Unlisted
securities securities equity Financial
inaprivate inaprivate securities Financial assets
limited limited ~in a private assets at FUPL
company company limited at FVPL - - Wealth
incorporated  incorporated company Unlisted ~ management ~ Contingent
outside outside incorporated  partnership products,  consideration
HongKong ~ Hong Kong inHongKong  investments unlisted payables Total

REWZE  RBER  1MBEK
YARATE  BATE  BAVE
REZHE  REE  REGE
RE—-R HE-RN  RE-1'  1BER NEg
REREN BB BEER RAVE  BERAYE
iy #MRIz  KIZiAE BE.  REZHE
LARRAA WABRAR  ROAy  EBEE- AE-§R

QEEE kLR Fau} kI EEER: FEf
Description it RAES kfEs  REES AERE L AMRE Eh)

HKS000  HKFO00  HKFOOO  HKFOOD  HKEO00  HKS'000  HK§'000
TAT TR TR TAT TR TR TR

As at 1 January 2018 R-F-\§-A-H

{Audited and originally stated) FEAEEY = = — - 449,998 (16,713) 433,285
Reclassified from avallable-for- ~ # At EGFEEEH 2

sale financial assets b 247,500 - - 17,289 - - 264,789
Eifect on financial assets FOEAERLENZ 0%

remeasured at fairvalue upon ~ BRATEBHHELY

adoption of HKFRS 9 BaE Y2 20,000 = = (5,085) = = 14915
As at 1 January 2018 RZF-N\E-A-H

(Audited and restated) (mEH REE]|) 267,500 — - 12,204 449,998 (16,713) 712,989
Iniial recognition s - 171,40 48,669 13,492 151,808 — 385,209
Disposal during the year Qe - - - - (253,000 S (253,000
Net return of capital contribution ~ BEFEAAEE - = = (2311) = = (2311)
Fair value changes INTE L) (34.239) (35,028) (22,976) (3,135) (291,779) 16,524 (370,633)
Settlement to profit quarantee  BEEFIRE - - - - = 5718 5,718
Compensation from profit RNRERE SHER

quarantee — other payables TR S S - - — (5,590) (5,590)
Exchange realignments e - - - 35 (1.462) 61 (1.366)
At as 31 December 2018 W=8-NF1+=R

(Audited) ST-A(EER) 233,261 136,212 25,693 20,285 55,565 = 471,016
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GRS B RRME

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

a)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The above fair value changes are reported as “changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVPL/fair value of
financial assets designated at FVOCI” in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 3 fair value measurement

The Group recognises the fair values of unlisted equity
securities in private limited companies incorporated
outside Hong Kong, unlisted equity securities in a
private limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and unlisted partnership investments at end of each
reporting period and fair values were determined by
adopting P/B, P/E and asset-based approach respectively
and adjusted by minority discounts.

The unlisted wealth management products’ investment
portfolio mainly comprises investment in debentures,
bank debentures, bank saving, corporate bonds, listed
securities and other investments in the PRC and global
market with high credit rating (the “Investment”) and
the fair value of the Investment is reported by the
financial institutions and external fund manager.

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

25. BT ECZAFEE)

a)

REMAVETRB(E)
RPEFEBRE =28 (F)

PR AFEESHNERES B R
HttzmPARKF 2HBINE
wIRRNTERBMBEE, 5
EREMEmMPARAFERELZ
MBEEZ A TEZES] -

R FEFERFI =B I ER
RBATE B it

AEEERANTBRINEMAL
ZIABRARZIFEMBAE
FRIELEMABRENSRE NS
RAZDFE  MzEXFED R
RAMEREX  MAEXREERER
RETE - YD BERITRENA

%%o

LTV EEEERBREHEEETE
BIEREREE - RITEREE - R1T
& RRESF LmBEHZRE
UERPEREETSESEERF
Mz EMBENTRE]D  MEE
ZATFERVEHEERINIESK
BRE o
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Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE2=—F—NF~NA=F+HIEANEA

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

a)

b)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group reviews estimation of fair values of the
unlisted wealth management products, unlisted equity
securities in a private limited company incorporated
outside Hong Kong and unlisted partnership
investments which are categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Reports with estimation of
fair value are prepared by the financial institutions
and external fund managers on a monthly basis
and independent valuers on a semi-annually basis.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
those charged with governance is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

Assets and liabilities with fair value disclosure, but
not measured at fair value

All other financial assets and liabilities including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables and interest-bearing borrowings are
carried at amounts not materially different from their
fair values as at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018.
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a)
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RPEFEBRE =28 (E)

AEE (G 1EEFE
AEESEMOBAATFERER
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SNEMARLZLABRARZIE L
MERAESFMIFELMABREZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements, a summary of
events transacted after end of the reporting period is set out
below:

The framework agreement in relation to a proposed
investment

On 16 July 2019, the Company entered into a non-legally
binding framework agreement with =& &2 2R (the
“Target Company”), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability, and the original shareholders of Target
Company, in relation to a proposed investment in Target
Company.

As at the date of these unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements, the Company is still in negotiation with
the Target Company and the details of the transaction have
not been fixed and materialised. Details of the proposed
investment are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 16 July 2019.

26.

B4R & B 35 3R AR M =

Six months ended 30 June 2019
BE—F—NFNA=FHINEA

BEMREE
BRESAEBRHASAHBERE M0
BHFFBBES  NBEWERA %
2 BEBAMT -

TREBERECERGE

RZF-NAFELA+TRE  AAFHER
PEEMKIZERAREEALER
RTERERARDARBERARZRARK
RMBBRRARZEBRRER LT RER
KR IHER W

RARKREZERZEMBRREH -
ARBNEBEFEARBET MR HZ
FEHABRBENREE EZBREZH
BERNARRBAMA-_FT-NAFLA
TARBEZRESR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWwR DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

As detailed in the 2018 Annual Report, the auditor has raised
fundamental uncertainties relating to the going concern of the
Group, same as the measures disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report,
the management has taken and will take the plans and measures
as outlined in note 2.1 to the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements to improve the Group’s financial position.

Dependent on the successful and favourable outcomes of the
plans and measures being taken as described in note 2.1 to the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, the Board,
including the Audit Committee, is of the view that the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern in foreseeable future.
Please refer to note 2.1 to the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for details.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has the following major business activities during the
six months ended 30 June 2019 (the “Period”):

loT Business

The major business activities of the Group covers cloud computing
and data processing and analysis (“cloud”), telecommunication
infrastructure and technologies (“pipeline”) and terminal
computing (“endpoint”) for corporate loT systems.

The Group’s loT business can be divided into 3 segments, namely
(i) 1oT solution; (i) human-machine interactive devices (“"HMID");
and (iii) intelligent documentation service (“IDS"”). During the
Period, the Group's segment gain or loss results from the loT
solution business, IDS business and HMID business amounted to
approximately HK$(86.24) million, HK$15.93 million and HK$19.21
million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Securities Investment Business

The Group invested in various financial instruments as both short-
term and long-term investments. During the Period, the Group
recorded a net realised loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$767.38 million,
dividend and interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$12.57 million and
a loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$129.71 million.

There is no significant securities investments (i.e. investment with
carrying amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group)
held by the Group as at 30 June 2019.

Money Lending Business

The Group provides short-term loans to various borrowers. Those
short-term loans carried interest rates ranging from 5% to 18%
per annum. During the Period, the money lending business
contributed a loan interest income of approximately HK$3.96
million to the Group.

OUTLOOK
loT Business

In the first half of 2019, with the mounting tension amid the
US-China “trade war”, the competition between the two
countries became increasingly intensified. Under the unfavourable
conditions, the stock market in the PRC and Hong Kong suffered
a severe blow, entering into a bear period. The dispute between
China and the United States has been shifted from trade to
science and technology issues. Therefore, the Group encountered
various difficulties and drastic changes in its business development
during the period. Although the development of the US-China
“trade war” remains highly uncertain, the disputes and struggles
between the two countries is expected to continue.

EEEFNWR DM

BEREEK

AEERERZEMBIAEEREBHRKE
BE - RAHRH  AEEREHERBERE
ANFEEBZYBEESRSEZEEBEFAE
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BEEENWwR DM

To date, the PRC’s government has been providing guidelines on
the standardised and scientific establishment of loT industry. Along
with the development of information technology, the IoT business
is constantly changing and evolving. We believe that loT industry
still has bright future. Looking forward, Rentian Technology will
adopt a proactive attitude in the Chinese loT sector and focus the
capital and management resources on the core and major business
activities by integrating the existing resources, promoting “loT +”
and optimising the business portfolio.

A brief discussion and analysis of the operations of the Group is as
follows.

Integrated Smart loT Solutions Business

The Group has entered into the car loan risk control field with
its smart loT tracking technologies at the end of 2018. In the
coming year, the Group will focus on developing solutions for the
construction of smart communities and the car loan risk control
solution business.

The Group continued to pursue IoT telecommunication
development. In addition to EoC telecommunication equipment
and fibre-optic telecommunication equipment for the existing
telecommunication operators, the Group will continue to
enlarge its share in the telecommunication operator market
with the development and sale of auxiliary telecommunication
products. New products such as homeplug has been successfully
commercialised and applied by telecommunication operators.

The Group offers smart logistic bin products to renowned domestic
and overseas logistic, e-commerce, retailing and catering brands.
The Group expects that further enhancement will be seen in the
coming year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HMID Business

The Group focuses on commercial HMID and develops terminal
hardware, software and service applications for treasury, taxation,
finance, education and other key industries. It offers smart and
mobile-internet corporate solutions including but not limited to
industry-specific integrated or self-service systems, smart payment
devices, printing devices and all-in-one cloud-based systems. Apart
from the traditional banking sectors, the Group will continue to
explore the national treasury and taxation and other sectors, in
respect of the research and development of new products.

IDS Business

The Group provides specialised services to accelerate document-
driven business processes to over 40 companies in the property
insurance and life insurance industry in the PRC. The entire
service process is supported by high level of confidentiality, data
accuracy and processing velocity. The Group is also engaged in the
development and sale of software products and technology and
provision of IT services and operations in combination with various
industry applications leveraging its technological expertise in the
insurance sector. During the Period, the Group was successful in
securing 9 new clients from the insurance sector.

The Group will continue to focus on developing its existing
business as well as expanding into new innovative solutions with
high growth potential.

Securities Investment Business

In view of the recent uncertain economic outlook in global
markets due to uncertainties over near-term economic growth
prospects and the changing domestic and external environment of
Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group takes attentive but sensible
approach towards investment opportunities and sticks with high-
conviction calls with solid earnings growth outlooks and strong
fundamentals. The Group will closely monitor the stock market
and will adopt a more prudent approach in securities investment
so the Group will scale down its investment segment and put more
resources and concentration in other operating segments.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results for the Period

The revenue of Rentian Technology for the Period significantly
decreased by 143.78% to approximately HK$(312.45) million as
compared to the corresponding period of 2018 (six months ended
30 June 2018: HK$713.61 million). The decrease was mainly
driven by the net realised loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$767.38 million
(six months ended 30 June 2018: net realised gain of HK$31.75
million); the decrease in revenue generated from the loT solution
segment to approximately HK$62.68 million (six months ended 30
June 2018: HK$223.32 million); and the decrease in dividend and
interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss to approximately HK$12.57 million (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$48.97 million).

The Group recorded a loss before taxation of approximately
HK$1,069.68 million (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$483.26
million). The loss before taxation was mainly attributable from (i)
the segment loss incurred by Investing business of approximately
HK$886.35 million (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$248.68
million) as a result of loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$767.38 million (six months
ended 30 June 2018: net realised gain of HK$31.75 million) and
decrease in dividend and interest income to HK$12.57 million
(six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$48.97 million); (ii) the
finance costs of approximately HK$94.86 million (six months
ended 30 June 2018: HK$92.78 million); and (iii) offsetting with
segment gain generated from the HMID business of approximately
HK$19.21 million (six months ended 30 June 2018: HK$12.0
million). Loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Period was approximately HK$1,039.20 million (six months
ended 30 June 2018: HK$491.31 million). Loss for the Period was
approximately HK$1,069.18 million (six months ended 30 June
2018: HK$486.46 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

The Group financed its operation largely through internal cash
resources, interest-bearing borrowings and placing of promissory
notes and convertible bonds. As at 30 June 2019, the Group
maintained its cash and bank balances (including pledged bank
deposits) at approximately HK$135.41 million (31 December 2018:
HK$347.17 million). The decrease in cash and bank balances was
mainly due to the repayment of borrowings during the Period.
The Group’s gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings and long-term debts (including promissory notes)
over total equity, was stated at 9,440.07% (31 December 2018:
249.49%). The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the
net effect of the decrease in total equity and total borrowings
and long-term debts of HK$1,078.35 million and HK$1,091.64
million respectively during the Period. As at 30 June 2019, the
Group’s net assets value amounted to approximately HK$17.40
million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$1,095.74 million) with total
assets amounted to approximately HK$2,185.31 million (as at 31
December 2018: HK$4,325.12 million). Current assets and current
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$1,532.59 million
(as at 31 December 2018: HK$3,671.94 million) and approximately
HK$2,053.66 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$3,133.98
million) respectively. The liquidity ratio, which is calculated as
current assets over current liabilities, was approximately 0.75 times
(as at 31 December 2018: 1.17 times).

Capital Structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As
at 30 June 2019, the issued share capital of the Company was
11,148,390,530 shares of HK$0.001 each.

EEEFNWR DM

REBES  HMBEER - BEREBEELE

AEBFZZENRTRER HEBEMUR
REARLEBRRAIBREFAELERME
& -RZE—NESNA=+H AEEZR
CRBRTEFRECERBTER)ES
M #9135,410,0008 (= —N\F+ = H
=+ —H 347,170,000 T ) - B & K E
THERLEERANAAIE AEE B
e AEBCEBBEEELXUABERRS
BEE(BEEALER)BERUERRE A
DHFIR) 59,440.07% (ZE—N\E+ = A
=+ —H:249.49%) - AEEEL X EF
FERARAHEAREZAEUEREEREK
HIE @ % » 5E 4 1,078,350,000 7% 7T &
1,091,640,000 BT 2 FHEBMH - R Z

—NERNRA=Z+TH REEZEEFENA
17,400,000 T(R=_E—NE+-_F=+—
H :1,095,740,000/ 70 )+ EERELN A
2,185,310,000 8 T(R ZF — N\ F+ = A
=+—H :4,325,120,000/ 7T) - A&E®H 2

MEBEENRTEEED B A1,532,590,000
BT Z—ZE-NF+_A=+—8":

3,671,940,0007% 7T ) & %) % 2,053,660,000

BT Z_ZE—NEF+_A=+—8":
3,133,980,000/8T) * BWRBEEBRARE
BEATEZRHERLERNEIISERE
—N\EFE+A=+—H:1.171%) -
BAREE

ARBZEARAEBREEAKR - RZZT— A
FXNAZ+TH ARAZEBITRAA
11,148,390,530 )k & X M {E0.001 & JT 2 I&

{/\ °

INTERIM REPORT 2019 iR

67



68

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWwR DM

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations in Hong Kong are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars and the Group's
revenue and operating costs in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") are denominated in the functional currency of the
Group’s entity making the sales or incurring the costs. The Group
considers there is no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations for United States dollars as long as the Hong Kong-
United States dollar exchange rate remains pegged. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider that the
currency risk is not significant. As such, no hedging instrument is
considered necessary by the Board during the Period. The Directors
will monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging the currency risk should the need arise.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2019, bank and other borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$430.0 million (31 December 2018: HK$591.0
million) from financial institutions and a bank, among which (i) the
bank borrowing of HK$180.0 million was guaranteed by Mr. King
Pak Fu (“Mr. King"”), the controlling shareholder of the Company
and secured by the charges over the entire issued share capital in
certain subsidiaries of the Company; and (ii) the other borrowing
of HK$250.0 million was guaranteed by Mr. King and was secured
by 203,854,292 shares of Enterprise Development Holdings
Limited (“Enterprise Development”).

As at 30 June 2019, margin facilities of approximately HK$150.0
million (31 December 2018: HK$841.73 million) obtained from
certain regulated securities dealers were secured by financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$9.99 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,556.32
million) and 39,682,000 shares of Enterprise Development (31
December 2018: 39,682,000 shares of Enterprise Development).
The Group did not utilise the facilities as at 30 June 2019 (31
December 2018: HK$685.49 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 30 June 2019, the convertible bonds of US$80 million issued
by the Company on 23 September 2016 with an outstanding
principal balance of approximately HK$689.35 million (31
December 2018: HK$672.12 million) was guaranteed by Mr. King
and secured by the entire shares of subsidiaries, Elite Dynamic
Enterprises Limited and Best Elite Enterprises Limited. As at 30
June 2019, bank deposits of approximately HK$11.49 million (31
December 2018: HK$11.26 million) was pledged to secure trade
finance facilities and banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Directors closely monitor the Group's liquidity position and
financial performance and have initiated measures to improve the
Group’s cash flows. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next fifteen months
from the end of the reporting period given that: (i) the Group
has obtained additional banking facilities of HK$1,100.0 million;
(ii) continuous development and improvement of the Group’s
businesses in IoT solution, HMID and IDS; and (iii) the Group
has obtained letters of undertakings from Mr. King and certain
companies controlled by Mr. King confirming that they will
provide financial support to the Group for the period from 1 July
2019 to 30 September 2020 to the extent that is necessary to
allow the Group to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Period.

Event After the Reporting Period

Details of event after the reporting period were disclosed in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2018: Nil).
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of

hHERE
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REEZET  HERBELZRBAERAEXV
HBETRBNHR LT RAREFTETESFR S
E’JT?/ SFA(TRESFA DB RAGRE
BHMERSERAR(HR]) 2= Rk
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Listed Companies (“Model Code”) and which were required to be Rtz EE AR
entered in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO were as follows:
Long positions in shares of the Company RAEQXTRBPZHRE
% of the
Ordinary Derivative Company's
shares shares  Total number issued share
Name of Directors Capacity (no. of shares) (no. of shares) of shares held capital  Note
ERNT
Rk FTER B ERTRE
EEpg 514 (RH#E) (RBEEB)  FEROGAH ZAESE  ME
Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung  Beneficial owner - 53,000,000 53,000,000 0.48% 1

("Mr. Kwok")

FRELE(HEL]) EafaA
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Note 1: These 53,000,000 shares are derived from the interest in 53,000,000 share
options granted by the Company to Mr. Kwok exercisable into 53,000,000
shares.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and their associates
has any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had approximately 1,500
employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC. Employee
remuneration, bonus, share option scheme and training policies
are commensurate with individual performance and experience
and comparable to the market rate. The Group contributes to
a Mandatory Provident Fund under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. Other employee benefits include insurance and
medical cover, subsidised educational and training programmes as
well as a share option scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits.
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SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme (“Scheme”) has been adopted at the
annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to the Directors and
employees of the Group and any other persons who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of the passing of
the relevant ordinary resolution. If any option is to be granted to
connected person(s), it must be approved by independent non-
executive directors or independent shareholders as the case may
be. The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted to a specifically identified single grantee
under the Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. Under the Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted by a participant within 14 days from the date of
such offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the offer of grant of an option. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determined by the Directors, and commences
after a vesting period of no shorter than 12 months and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of
the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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The following table discloses movement in the Company’s share TEREBFEBTIAARBRENRAERZ

options under the Scheme during the Period: BE
Number of share options
BREHE
Asat
1 January Granted during Forfeited during
Category of participant Date of grant Exercise price 2019 the period the period ~ As at 30 June 2019
H=%-1% H=%-0§
SEEEN RiRH ik -B-H BRRd b ~NAZ1R
Executive Directors/ former
Executive Director:
UTES/HUNES:
Mr. Tsang To (Note) 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 20,000,000 - (20,000,000) =
BEEE() E-RESAZTR 024787
14 July 2016 HK$0.520 10,000,000 = (10,000,000) —
“E-RECATEA 052087
30,000,000 — (30,000,000) —
Mr. Kwok 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
i3 ZE-REZR1A 04737
14 July 2016 HK$0.520 23,000,000 - - 23,000,000
ZE-RELATOE 052077
53,000,000 - - 53,000,000
Employees in aggregate: 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 121,000,000 - (30,500,000) 90,500,000
et ZE-REAC1A 04737
14 July 2016 HK$0.520 165,800,000 - (35,900,000) 129,900,000
ZE-nELATRA 05207
286,800,000 - (66,400,000) 220,400,000
Total
i 369,800,000 - (96,400,000) 273,400,000
Note: Mr. Tsang To resigned as executive Director with effect from 6 May 2019 and izt @EEEB S NFRANBREBETRITESR
the share options granted to him were lapsed on the same date. % HERT 2 ERERR B KRR -
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Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Period was the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2019, the following person (other than the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company) has interests or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5%
or more of the Company’s issued share capital, as known by the
Company or recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information
received by the Company.

0 ] NN R I o B VN 0
HEMZERAR - MBARLRRHME AR
BELEMNZH  BEARRESZAER
BARRASEMEMEABEZ R ER
& M &8 o

FERR

R-Z-NERNA=Z1THE  BARBMAK
RIZE» K EIGRDIE 336 R RIFE 2 E LM
RS RIRBARFIEFZER - U TAL
(RRREZARSTHRABRINRALRT
B REBERDFEREBEARRREHITRA
5% A L Z ERBORE

Number in shares
interested in or deemed

% of voting

Capacity/ to be interested right (Long
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest (Long position) position) Notes
RERZZHEA EREE
BERZZRHEE 2B
RREE/ 28 B/ HEHME (&) (&) FizE
Mr. King Pak Fu (“Mr. King") Interest in controlled corporation 4,209,150,000 38.19% 1
SEERE(SEE]D REEHEE 2 s
Beneficial owner 327,550,000 2.97%
ERBEBA
Mystery Idea Limited ("Mystery Idea”) Beneficial owner 2,701,170,000 24.51%
(T Mystery Idea]) ESBEBA
Better Joint Venture Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,455,660,000 13.21% 2
("Better Joint Venture") RERHEE 2 s
(I'Better Joint Venture]) Beneficial owner 43,320,000 0.39% 2
ERBEEA
Carnival Group International Interest in controlled corporation 1,455,660,000 13.21% 3
Holdings Limited ("Carnival”) R EE 2 R
EFEERERERAR([EFE])
Ever Success Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 9,000,000 0.08%

("Ever Success") ExHERA

(I'Ever Success])
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Number in shares

interested in or deemed % of voting
Capacity/ to be interested right (Long
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest (Long position) position) Notes
RERZZHEA EREE
RAEEGZRAEE ZBED
RERHZ/ 28 ETYE: 5131 (##&) (F#&) KizE
Swift Fortune Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1,455,600,000 13.21%
("Swift Fortune”) ELHERA
RELBERAR(#E])
Mr. Wang Xu Interest in controlled corporation 1,201,600,000 10.90% 4
FBEAE REEHEE 2 s
State Frontier Limited (“State Frontier”) Beneficial owner 1,201,600,000 10.90% 4
BEBRRB([FHE]) ERBEBA
Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong Interest in controlled corporation 592,941,176 5.38% 5
BIRPEE INCRET =k
Superb Fortune Limited ("Superb Fortune”) Beneficial owner 592,941,176 5.38% 5
([Superb Fortune |) BERBEEA
Guangzhou Yuexiu Holdings Limited Security interest 1,000,000,000 9.07% 6
BMEASEEERAH BHEs
Ministry of Finance of the PRC Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
B B R B REEHZEE 2R
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
Ltd.
FEREREEEERNHERAH REEGERE R
China Huarong Overseas Investment Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
Holdings Co., Limited
REERGIMTEEREBR AT REEHEE s
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Notes:

Mr. King is deemed to be interested in (i) 43,320,000 shares of the Company
(“Share(s)”) held through Better Joint Venture; (ii) 2,701,170,000 Shares held
through Mystery Idea; (iii) 9,000,000 Shares held through Ever Success; and
(iv) 1,455,660,000 Shares held through Swift Fortune under the SFO. Each of
Better Joint Venture, Mystery Idea and Ever Success are wholly-owned by Mr.
King. Swift Fortune is wholly-owned by Carnival, which in turn is owned as to
approximately 31.12% by Better Joint Venture.

Better Joint Venture is interested in 43,320,000 Shares, and is deemed to be
interested in 1,455,660,000 Shares held through Swift Fortune under the SFO.
Swift Fortune is wholly-owned by Carnival.

Carnival is deemed to be interested 1,455,660,000 Shares held through Swift
Fortune under the SFO, a company wholly-owned by Carnival.

Mr. Wang Xu is deemed to be interested in 1,201,600,000 Shares held
through State Frontier under the SFO. State Frontier is wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Xu.

Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong is deemed to be interested in 592,941,176 Shares held
through Superb Fortune under the SFO. Superb Fortune is wholly-owned by
Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong.
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Disclosure of Other Information

6. These security interests are held by Yue Xiu Investment Consultants Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Guangzhou Yuexiu Holdings Limited.

7. Brilliant Nexus Limited (“Brilliant Nexus”) is interested in 60,400,000 Shares.
Brilliant Nexus is wholly-owned by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (“Huarong Overseas”). These underlying shares
represent a maximum of 529,351,535 new Shares that may be issued upon
full conversion of the convertible bonds which are owned by Kingdom Harvest
Limited (“Kingdom Harvest”). Kingdom Harvest is wholly-owned by Huarong
Overseas. Huarong Overseas is wholly-owned by Huarong Huagiao Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Huagiao”). Huarong Huagiao is owned as
to 51% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong
Zhiyuan”) and as to 40% by Guangdong Jinfeng Group Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong
Jinfeng”). Huarong Zhiyuan is wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong AM"), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02799.HK). Huarong AM is
owned as to approximately 67.75% by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the
“MOEF"). Guangdong lJinfeng is wholly-owned by Hong Kong Jinfeng Group
Co., Ltd. ("Hong Kong Jinfeng”), which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Sun
Siu Kit (“Mr. Sun”). Each of Huarong Overseas, Huarong Huagiao, Huarong
Zhiyuan, Guangdong Jinfeng, Huarong AM, the MOF, Hong Kong Jinfeng and
Mr. Sun are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Brilliant Nexus and
Kingdom Harvest are interested in under the SFO.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had not been notified of any
short positions being held by any substantial shareholder in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a director of the Company) who has
an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2019.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Period, the Company had repurchased its own shares
from the market in total of 270,000 shares at an aggregate
consideration (before transaction costs and expenses) of
HK$6,000. (six months ended 30 June 2018: Nil).

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has adopted its own code on corporate governance
practices which incorporate all the code provision in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company will continue to enhance
the corporate governance standards throughout the Group and
ensure further standards be put in place by reference to the
recommended best practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

Save as disclosed below, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the CG Code during the Period:

(@) CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. On 10 January 2019,
Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung, an executive Director and the
existing executive president of the Company, has been re-
designated as an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board will keep reviewing its
current structure and the need of appointment of a suitable
candidate to perform the role of Chairman; and

(b) CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and be
subject to re-election. The Company has not fixed the term of
appointment for non-executive Directors, which constitutes
a deviation from Code Provision A.4.1. However, all non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to Article 116 in the Articles of Association of the
Company.

() CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulated that independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the view of shareholders. Due to other pre-
arranged business commitments which must be attended by
the Directors, Mr. Chin Hon Siang and Mr. Huang Xin were
not able to attend the general meeting of the Company on
28 June 2019.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the
Period.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chin Hon Siang,
Mr. Huang Xin and Mr. Leung Ka Tin and one executive Director,
namely Ms. Hau Ying. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and determination of the remuneration
policy and packages of the directors and management executives.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established in accordance with
the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chin Hon Siang, Mr. Huang
Xin and Mr. Leung Ka Tin. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, and select and make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of Directors and senior management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Chin Hon Siang (as chairman), Mr. Huang
Xin and Mr. Leung Ka Tin.

The unaudited interim financial results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules
and statutory compliance in relation to financial reporting, and
has discussed internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters with senior management. In addition, the
Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Directors, | would like to extend our gratitude
and sincere appreciation to all management and staff members
for their diligence and dedication, the continuing support of our
business partners, customers and the Company’s shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Rentian Technology Holdings Limited
Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 August 2019
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